
1 

 

  

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2019 

2104 W. LABURNUM AVENUE 

RICHMOND, VA 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER                         9:00 a.m. 

 

CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

 

CHAIRMAN’S AGENDA 

ITEM NO.                              Page(s) 

 

1. Public Comment Period  

 

2. Minutes of Regular Meeting of August 16, 2019                3-13 

 

3. Chairman’s Report                      

 

4. Audit Committee Report 

    2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)              14 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

 ITEM NO. 

  

5.  Residential Recycling Program 

    

6.    Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Program  

 

7.  Consideration of Resolution 20-02: Awarding Contracts for Recycling and Solid Waste  

    Consultant Services                           15-16 

 

8.  Consideration of Resolution 20-03: Appropriating Funds for Recycling and Solid Waste         

       Consultant Services Project                       17-18 

  

9.    Operations and Program Statistics 

  

10.  Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Report  

  

11.   Public Information 

 

  

     CENTRAL VIRGINIA  
    WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

2100 West Laburnum Avenue, Suite 105, Richmond, Virginia  23227. 804/359-8413   .     Fax 804/359-8421    .  www.cvwma.com 



2 

 

12.   Financial Reports for August 2019                         19-20 

 

13.   Administrative   

 

                     

OLD/NEW BUSINESS 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Upcoming Meetings: 

 

    Technical Advisory Committee - Thursday, October 3, 2019 – 9:00 a.m.  

    Executive Committee Meeting – Tuesday, October 8, 2019 – 10:00 a.m. 

    Board of Directors Meeting (Chesterfield) – Friday, October 18, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

 
At any time during the meeting the Board may go into a closed session pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-3712 for purposes of 

consulting with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice, as authorized under Virginia Code 

Section 2.2-3711 (A) (7). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

CHAIRMAN’S AGENDA 

ITEM NO. 2  
 
 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2019 

 

Minutes of the August 16, 2019 CVWMA Board of Directors meeting are attached for review and 

consideration. 

 

 Recommended Action:    Approval of minutes 

 

Attachment 



4 

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

AUGUST 16, 2019 

2104 WEST LABURNUM AVENUE 

RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 

 

MEMBERS/ALTERNATES PRESENT MEMBERS/ALTERNATES NOT PRESENT 

  

Voting: 

Marcia Phillips (M-Chesterfield), Chairman Robert L. Dunn (M-Chesterfield), Director 

Patricia Paige (M-New Kent), Vice Chairman Lee Sloppy (A-Ashland) 

Miles Jones (M-Richmond), Secretary Michelle Johnson (A-Charles City) 

Michael Purvis (M-Prince George), Treasurer Ricky Hicks (M-Charles City) 

J. Allen Lane (M-Henrico), Past Chair Jeffrey Howard (A-Chesterfield) 

Jennifer Schontag (M-Ashland) Al Pace (A-Chesterfield) 

Scott Zaremba (M-Chesterfield) Doug Smith (M-Colonial Heights) 

Dwayne Jones (A-Goochland) William E. Henley (A-Colonial Heights) 

Stephen Chidsey (M-Hanover) Leigh Dunn (M-Goochland) 

Scott A. Wyatt (M-Hanover) Randy Hardman (A-Hanover) 

Marcia E. Kelley (M-Henrico) Michael Flagg (A-Hanover) 

Robert C. Whiteman (M-Henrico) Chip England (A-Henrico) 

William Riggleman (A-Petersburg) Bentley Chan (A-Henrico) 

Johnny Melis (A-Powhatan) Monique Robertson (M-Hopewell) 

Darlene Jenkins (M-Richmond) James H. Burrell (A-New Kent) 

 Tangela Innis (M-Petersburg) 

 Rod Compton (A-Prince George) 

 Mark Kukoski (M-Richmond) 

 

Serena Li (A-Richmond) 

 

Non-Voting: 

     Clay Bowles (A-Chesterfield) 

   J Jon Clary (A-Henrico) 

 
 

 

 

Staff: 

 

Guests: 

Kimberly A. Hynes, Executive Director  

Richard Nolan, Director of Operations 

Nancy Drumheller, Public Affairs Manager 

Kenna Shea, Accounting and Financial Manager 

 

Reginald D. Thompson, Operations Analyst  

Stephanie Breaker, Sr. Customer Service Supervisor  

Mary Beth Mains, Part-Time Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

With a quorum in attendance Chairman M. Phillips (M-Chesterfield) called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  

 

CHAIRMAN’S AGENDA 

 

Item No. 1: Public Comment Period 

 

Chairman Phillips (M-Chesterfield) opened the floor for public comment. Without any requests to address the 

Board, she closed the public comment period. 

 

Item No. 2: Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 16, 2019 

 

Chairman Phillips (M-Chesterfield) opened the floor for a motion to approve the minutes of the regular 

meeting of June 21, 2019, as submitted. A motion was made by Mr. A. Lane (M-Henrico), past Chair, 

seconded by Mr. J. Melis (A-Powhatan) and carried that the minutes of the June 21, 2019 Central Virginia 

Waste Management Authority (CVWMA) Board of Directors meeting be approved as submitted. 

 

Item No. 3: Chairman’s Report 

 

Chairman Phillips welcomed all attendees and moved onto the Nominating Committee report. 

 

Item No. 4: Nominating Committee Report 

 

Election of Treasurer for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

Mr. A. Lane (M-Henrico), past Chairman and Nominating Committee Chair, reminded the Board that a 

Treasurer had not been previously elected but he was happy to report that the committee is nominating Mr. M. 

Purvis (M-Prince George) for Treasurer. 

 

Mr. S. Wyatt (M-Hanover) motioned to close nominations for Treasurer, Mr. J. Melis (A-Powhatan) seconded 

and it was carried to close nominations.  

 

Chairman Phillips asked if there was a motion to approve the Treasurer as presented by the nominating 

committee and it was moved by Mr. S. Chidsey (M-Hanover), seconded by Mr. S. Wyatt (M-Hanover) and Mr. 

M. Purvis (M-Prince George) was elected to the position of Treasurer. 

 

Item No. 5: Installation of Officers for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

 

Mrs. Kenna Shea, CVWMA Accounting and Financial Manager, administered the Oath of Office to the new 

officers for the 2019-2020 fiscal year. Mrs. K. Shea requested that all officers-elect stand and recite the Oath of 

Office after her. 

 

Officers Sworn in for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year are as follows: 

 

Mrs. Marcia Phillips (M-Chesterfield)…...Chairman 

Mrs. Patricia Paige (M-New Kent)…….....Vice-Chair 

Mr. Michael Purvis (M-Prince George)......Treasurer 

Mr. Miles Jones (M-Richmond)....………..Secretary 

Mr. Allen Lane (M-Henrico)……………...Past Chair 

Mr. Robert Dunn (M-Chesterfield), Director, was not in attendance. 

 

 



6 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

 

Item No. 6: 2019 Education and Outreach and Program Statistics Presentation 

 

Mrs. Nancy Drumheller, CVWMA Public Affairs Manager, gave a snapshot of efforts throughout the region 

in Fiscal Year 2019 by the 2 Public Information (PI) staff (Mrs. N. Drumheller and Ms. K. Carney) for 

education and outreach as well as a recap of the yearlong campaign to reduce contamination in recycling, as 

allocated by the Board. PI Staff responded to 467 requests from a variety of groups to do presentations, 

provide education tables at local events, or for educational materials; 238 educational presentations on 

“Recycle Right” noting the larger schools required multiple programs if there was more than one class per 

grade; staff hosted educational tables at 82 events (which is up significantly because of yearlong campaign to 

reduce contamination in recycling); served as a judge on a panel for Henrico 4H Public Speaking Competition 

and the Virginia LifeSmart Competition; and the Authority had 26 media stories. Staff estimates impacting 

over 20,000 people through education and outreach programs.  

 

Chesterfield County, Henrico County and the City of Richmond continue to be the top requestors for 

education and outreach but all 13 jurisdictions were served. With the yearlong campaign to reduce 

contamination in recycling, staff saw an increase in requests from other localities as staff provided education 

for drop-off recycling too. Mrs. Drumheller thanked Mr. J. Melis (A-Powhatan), Mr. J. Clary (A-Henrico) and 

Mr. M. Jones (M-Richmond), Secretary, for making introductions and partnering with staff in their respective 

locality. Mrs. Drumheller noted that staff, with the help of the Young Scientists, were able to continue 

maintaining the level of service even without the full time Recycling Education and Outreach Specialist who 

resigned in May.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller continued reporting there were 129 requests resulting in over 72,000 materials distributed 

throughout the region. Chesterfield County, Henrico County and the City of Richmond lead with the amount 

of educational materials shared at programs, events or as a request from a citizen, home owner associations, or 

civic groups. In addition, member localities that do not participate in the Curbside Recycling Program were 

able to receive increased supply of materials because of the funds allocated for the yearlong campaign that 

Staff will recap later. Mrs. Drumheller reminded the Board that her reporting does not include the outreach 

efforts of the Call Center or member localities.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller shared that the focus for the 2018 America Recycles Day was to pledge to “recycle right.” 

Over 100 pledges to Reduce, Reuse, and Recycle were submitted. Mrs. Drumheller thanked the many 

members of the Curbside Education Advisory Committee for helping staff get the messages out on the 

importance of recycling right. Staff provided presentations, worked events and was a vendor at the Virginia 

Association of Science Teachers (VAST) Professional Development Institute in Williamsburg. In addition, 

CVWMA partnered with CBS6 to run the Oops! Recycle Right Contest. It launched on America Recycles 

Day, November 15th and ran through January 15, 2019. Mrs. Drumheller thanked all of the CVWMA partners 

and noted CVWMA could not accomplish all that they have without our partners. 

 

For Earth Day, the Public Information staff serviced 75 requests for the month of April compared to 60 

requests last year and estimate 3,842 people were impacted compared to 2,546 last April. 13,719 educational 

materials were distributed versus 11,353 last April. This year over 600 recycled paper “Forget Me Not Seed 

Starters” were given away Mrs. Drumheller noted. The focus for Earth Day was to rethink waste and reduce 

environmental impact. Mrs. Drumheller stated that she wished people would be environmentally conscious all 

year long instead of just the month of April. In addition to CVWMA efforts, staff promoted locality special 

collection events and other programs including National Prescription Drug Take Back events that take place 

each year in the spring and fall.  

 



7 

 

Mrs. Drumheller noted the annual collection schedule is the biggest educational material that CVWMA staff 

circulates. Staff includes as many educational messages as can fit as the public looks for this piece each year. 

Mrs. Drumheller noted even when you think you have covered everything the Customer Service Team shares 

new questions/comments they hear from the public.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller stated that the Customer Service Team including, Mrs. S. Breaker, Senior Customer Service 

Supervisor, two full time customer service representatives, and one-part time customer service representative 

do a great job. The Authority received over 103,000 inbound calls this past fiscal year. Of these calls, about 

47,000 callers heard a clear and effective message in the phone queue and did not call back thanks to the 

updated phone system. The Customer Service Team processed over 56,000 inbound calls; made over 7,580 

outbound calls to follow-up or verify service; and responded to over 7,515 web/email requests from the public 

and locality staff. In addition, they mailed out over 12,000 publications requested by customers which 

included calendars, extra container stickers, “Recycle Right/Oops!” rack cards, plastic bag keepers, and 

processed many credit card sales of bins and carts. Mrs. Drumheller discussed the value of live agents and the 

countless teachable moments they provide especially with the impact of contamination, service issues, 

inclement weather and pick up scheduling slides. A “Live Chat” feature will be coming soon as an additional 

customer service enhancement. 

 

Mrs. Drumheller reported staff continues to see the online communications as an educational component all 

on its own. The public is connected to CVWMA in a variety of ways and staff is always out in front of the 

public with clear messages as people share what we post. In addition to keeping the website current and daily 

posts on social media, staff adds educational Pins (Educational Resources) on Pinterest and maintains a 

locality specific page for all 13-member jurisdictions; an event calendar for any special collection events; the 

Recycling Wizard feature as well as sharing locality information, and videos. Online communications are 

being completed simultaneously while staff are providing programs, answering emails, etc. Mrs. Drumheller 

reported that other Outreach Services include the Curbside email reminder, the Waste Reduction News 

Monthly electronics newsletter, the Regional Waste Line and the Electronic Recycling Collection Update 

email blast.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller stated that there were over 214,500 unique visitors compared to 205,207 last year and over 

475,800 page visits compared to 429,462 last year. A unique visitor means that each users information or 

email address is only counted once. CVWMA has over 8,500 “Likes/Followers” on Facebook compared to 

8,000 last fiscal year. Followers want to be engaged and look for a variety of resources and visuals. Our 

Pinterest page visits average about 1,200 impressions per month and 31,000 users subscribe to the Curbside 

Email Reminder. The Waste Reduction News, monthly electronic email Newsletter has more than 1,400 

subscribers.  

 

Staff partnered with WTVR CBS6 on the Reduce Contamination Campaign and contest and it was a huge 

success. There was a lot of momentum from it with over 3,000 people entering the contest and answering 

several recycling related questions. People wanted to get an Oops! sticker so they could see what not to 

recycle, Mrs. Drumheller noted. The campaign educated residents on the impact they are each making when 

they do not recycle correctly. Mrs. Drumheller stated we are very lucky to have such great community 

partners, thanking WTVR CBS6. The Oops! CVWMA advertisement won Best Commercial by the Virginia 

Broadcasting Association.  

 

CVWMA’s yearlong campaign to reduce contamination was a great way to keep messages out in front of the 

pubic to recycle right. Staff spent an entire year providing messaging in a variety of ways, including bus signs, 

signage, ads, utility bill inserts, zip code specific education, and local events. She thanked Marcia Kelley (M-

Henrico) and Mr. J. Clary (A-Henrico) for the opportunity to speak at one of Mrs. Patricia O’Bannon, 



8 

 

Tuckahoe Board of Supervisors, Town Meetings. Mrs. Drumheller noted several City Managers have put 

Reduce Right information in their newsletters. 

 

As we start our new fiscal year, Mrs. Drumheller stated CVWMA staff goals include going back to the basics 

of recycling: “Reduce. Reuse. Recycle.”; provide consistent messaging and visuals to educate “wishcyclers”; 

stay current and maximize technologies that engage customers; maintain partnerships and work with area 

experts to align the recycling education classroom presentations with the new Virginia Standards of Learning; 

collaborate with member localities on consistent messaging to the public; and ensure sustainability of our 

programs. Mrs. Drumheller stated that partnering with the Young Scientists has been a great success, noting 

the sustainability of our educational efforts has been immeasurable.  

 

Mrs. Drumheller stated she appreciated the efforts of each of the localities and reminded the Board that she 

was only reporting on what CVWMA staff has worked on and her report does not include all of the efforts 

provided by the localities and partners.  

 

Mrs. M. Kelley (M-Henrico) asked what the deadline for the calendars is, to which Mrs. Drumheller 

responded quotes will have to be turned in to staff by September 20th and then a printer and mail house will be 

chosen. Final artwork will have to be to the printer at the beginning of November. Mrs. Drumheller thanked 

Mrs. Kelley for asking and stated that this would be discussed more at the Curbside Education Advisory 

Committee meeting, as soon as she can get it scheduled. 

 
Mr. R. Nolan, CVWMA Director of Operations, presented the annual report on Fiscal Year 2019 Program 

Statistics. He noted that 36,393 tons of recycling was collected in the Residential Recycling Program this is 759 

tons less than the previous year. County Waste collected over 3,000 additional tons in Chesterfield County which 

was not part of the CVWMA program. Mr. Nolan stated there was a decrease in tonnage in Petersburg due to 

contamination enforcement and a turnover in new tenants that did not understand that recycling cans are not for 

trash, leading to contamination. Mr. Nolan noted that each of the jurisdictions have had year over year decreases 

noting there was reduction in glass and an upswing in plastic.  

 

Referring to the slide Mr. Nolan noted the Residential Recycling tonnage was highest in Henrico, at 31.6%. 

Richmond and Chesterfield followed next with 29.3% and 27.2% respectively. Mr. Nolan noted all other 

participating jurisdictions were consistent with previous years. 

 

The average monthly misses for FY19 were 584. Mr. Nolan reminded the Board of the 2 major snow storms in 

FY2019 and he noted he would like to see the numbers continue to decrease.  

 

Mr. Nolan reported that in the Drop-Off program the volume has increased from 6,881 tons in FY18 to 7,338 tons 

for FY19. Mr. Nolan noted Mixed Paper, OCC and Single Stream tonnage are all up from last year. 

 

Mr. Nolan also reported on Other Programs including Scrap Metal and CFC/HCFC Recovery. The CFC/HCFC 

removal program saw an uptick in volume due to Chesterfield and Goochland joining the program. Mr. Nolan 

noted volume collected in the Household Hazardous Waste Program was up in Used Oil and Category 1 (paints 

and solvents) and down in antifreeze and oil filters. Mr. Nolan noted there has been a change in the makeup of 

antifreeze, therefore maintenance departments do not change out antifreeze as often. 

 

Mr. Nolan reported that there was a 46 ton decrease in waste tires in the Waste Tire program. The Propane Tank 

program saw a decrease of 46 propane tanks collected. Mr. Nolan noted one improvement in this year’s Propane 

Tank Program is the contractor is picking up one pound, camping type, propane cylinders. Mr. Nolan noted a slight 

increase in eWaste collections. The contractors are seeing more flat screen televisions than previously accepted 

and fewer CRT (cathode ray tube) TVs. Volume was down about 12 tons in the Textiles Program. 

 



9 

 

Mr. Nolan noted that over $900,000 was returned to the jurisdictions in FY19. The market price for Mixed Paper 

dropped from $75/ton in July of FY2018 to $0 ton in July of FY2019. This resulted in a $100,491 decrease from 

FY18 in total program revenues. Mr. Nolan highlighted that OCC revenue dropped by $25,330 and Mixed Paper 

revenue dropped by $118,700. MSW Convenience Center Trash collections were consistent in FY19 across all 

jurisdictions except Goochland County who had an increase of 462 tons. 

 

In closing, Mr. Nolan noted the world events and China no longer importing recyclables and mixed paper will 

continue to have a negative financial effect on CVWMA’s Residential Recycling Program. The uncertainty of the 

United States economy may also have an impact on the recycling markets Mr. Nolan stated. New domestic paper 

mills are being built throughout the country which will help with the Cardboard and Mixed Paper markets in the 

future. Lastly, Mr. Nolan noted the impact of landfill availability in the CVWMA Region. Two MSW landfills in 

our region are currently involved in litigation. This could have an impact on the cost to dispose of MSW in the 

CVWMA Region in the future.  

 

Item No. 7: Consideration of Resolution 20-01: Approval of the 5 Year Update to the Central Virginia 

Waste Management Plan 

 

Mr. R. Nolan referred the Board to the Board Agenda Packet for a summary of the 5-year update to the 

Central Virginia Solid Waste Management Plan. He reminded the Board the Virginia waste management 

regulations require an update to the Plan every 5 years and the central Virginia regional plan is due to the 

DEQ by August 20. He provided the board with a summary of major updates, inclusions and assumptions 

made during the planning process. He reported that it is estimated, the region will generate over a million tons 

per year, or 22,000,000 tons over the 20 year planning period, based on population growth and the EPA’s 

estimated waste generation rate of 4.48 pounds per person per day. Of that it is anticipated at least half will be 

recycled, leaving an estimated 11,000,000 tons to be disposed of in landfills or other waste alternatives. As 

part of the process, Mr. Nolan reported the most recent Solid Waste Information and Assessment (SWIA) 

report DEQ publishes was used to determine remaining capacity of permitted landfills in and outside of the 

CVWMA region. As of January 1, 2019, there remains over 41,000,000 tons of permitted capacity in sanitary 

landfills and another 23.7 million tons in construction, demolition and debris landfills in the region.  In 

addition, landfills outside, but in close proximity to, the region have another remaining 99.6 million tons of 

capacity. Mr. Nolan made noted that the Shoosmith Landfill, which includes 20 million of the 41 million in 

permitted capacity, as a state permit for the expansion, however does not have local approval. Also, the Tri-

City Landfill currently is not taking in waste the projected reopen date is unknown at this time. Mr. Nolan 

stated that County Waste is planning to construct a new landfill in Cumberland County, which was mentioned 

in the Plan as potential capacity in the future.   
 

Mr. S. Chidsey (M-Hanover) noted the 99,000,000 tons have not been obligated to the CVWMA region, but to 

others outside of the state, without flow control. Mr. Nolan noted that the TAC reviewed the plan and the 

responses from each of our member localities that responded to the request for information. He gave a special 

thank you to Mr. S. Chidsey (M-Hanover) for all of his time working on the plan and the member localities who 

have helped to review the information. 

 

Mrs. M. Kelley (M-Henrico) asked if information from New Kent and Richmond had been received and if we 

have to have information from all of the jurisdictions for this process. Mrs. K. Hynes stated she did not know 

if we are required to have it but that we did ask for the information and have not received it.  

 

Chairman Phillips asked for a motion to approve Resolution 20-01: Approval of the 5 Year Update to the 

Central Virginia Waste Management Plan as presented. It was moved by Mr. S. Wyatt (M-Hanover), and 

seconded by Mr. A. Lane (M-Henrico), and approved as presented. 

 



10 

 

Item No. 8: Residential Recycling Program 

 

Mr. R. Nolan reported the total tonnage of recyclables collected in the first month of the new year in the 

residential recycling program was 2,999 tons, 69 tons less than last July. Mr. Nolan added that there was a 

total of 793 misses for the month of July compared to 514 in June, mainly due to the City of Hopewell 

transferring from County Waste to TFC for residential collection. He indicated that the misses in Hopewell 

should decrease as everyone in Hopewell gets adjusted to the new schedule.  

 

Item No. 9: Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) Program 

 

In the month of July Mr. R. Thompson, CVWMA Operations Analyst, reported 61 misses were recorded in 

Ashland for CFS and 17 misses in the Chesterfield tax relief program for County Waste; In the tri-city area, 

131 misses were recorded in Colonial Heights, 248 misses in Hopewell; and 189 misses in Petersburg by CFS. 

Mr. Thompson noted that CFS began collecting trash in Ashland in July under the new MSW contract and 

things seem to be falling into place after a rocky start in the first few weeks of collection. CFS was penalized 

for 29 misses in Hopewell during the month of July for a total of $1,450.  

 

Item No. 10: Operations and Program Statistics  

 

Mr. Nolan noted June program statistics were available at the front of the room and July’s final report will be 

available online once CVWMA receives all the numbers. Mr. Nolan noted the Drop Off program has changed 

from a dual stream to a single stream program. Mr. Nolan noted he added a column for residue and added 

single stream to the report. TFC is collecting in addition to processing that material now. To calculate the 

Comix, 65% is counted as Mixed Paper, 25% is counted as Comix and 10% as residue. OCC is delivered by 

the jurisdictions and the tons are noted on the report.  

 

Mr. Nolan updated the Board on upcoming events: Chesterfield County e-cycling Event - November 16; City 

of Richmond Recycling Event – Location to be Determined, September 14 at 10:00 am – 2:00 pm; Henrico 

County e-cycling Event – October 5; Hanover County e-cycling Event - November 9; Hanover County 

Household Hazardous Waste Event – November 16. 

 

Mr. Nolan noted the commodity markets for fiber held steady again. June 2019 commodity pricing for Mixed 

Paper is still at $0; Old Corrugated Cardboard (OCC) stayed at $35, and newsprint stayed at $25.  

 

Universal Environmental Services is the new CVWMA Waste Oil contractor, effective July 1st. Mr. Nolan 

noted CVWMA is receiving less rebate money for waste oil in the new contract but others are not receiving 

any rebate. 

 

Mr. R. Whiteman (M-Henrico) asked if we know where TFC is taking the material they pick up. Mr. Nolan 

replied Mixed Paper is going to markets in Vietnam, India, Italy, and some domestic locations; cardboard is 

going mainly to Sonoco; and plastic, aluminum and glass stay in the United States. Mr. C. Bowles (A-

Chesterfield) asked if we have documentation on that. Mr. Nolan stated he has not seen official bills of lading 

but noted it is something we could request.  

 

Item No. 11: Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Report 

 

Mr. Nolan stated the TAC met on August 1st and topics discussed were: the Solid Waste consultant RFP; the 

5 year update to the Solid Waste Management Plan and the TAC visit to Enstorga on September 11th. The 

next TAC meeting is scheduled for September 5th. 

 



11 

 

Mr. Nolan then informed the Board the CVWMA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Recycling and 

Solid Waste Consultant Services on July 31, 2019 and a mandatory pre-proposal conference was held on 

August 7 following the TAC. The RFP Evaluation Committee included Mr. S. Chidsey (M-Hanover), Mr. J. 

Clary (A-Henrico), Mr. T. Brown with the City of Richmond, Mrs. K. Hynes and Mr. R. Nolan. Mrs. M. 

Kelley (M-Henrico) asked if the cost of the consultant was known. Mrs. K. Hynes stated staff put out the RFP 

broadly with the first focus to be on our Recycling program. Mrs. Hynes noted the RFP went out with the 

potential of the consultant looking at the solid waste landscape for the region. Mrs. Hynes noted putting a 

consultant under contract does not cost anything until we assign them a project.  

 

The first project is to help us craft a scope for the next procurement of the Residential Recycling program and 

looking at the differences and challenges occurring in each of the localities. Mrs. Hynes stated we are looking 

for a regional plan that still achieves an economy of scale and recognizes the differences within the localities. 

Mrs. Hynes noted the difference of some localities having recycling bins versus the larger recycling carts for 

instance. Interviews will be done after the proposals are in. Staff will work with the consultant on what they 

will do in the first project and at that time they will give us an estimated cost. The plan is to award the 

contract to a consultant at the September Board meeting and at that time appropriate the funds. That will be 

vetted before sending out the Board package so an informed decision can be made.  

 

Mrs. Hynes stated the committee has asked them to come back to us by December with their 

recommendations and best practices, noting this is a quick turnaround from the September 20th award date. 

 

Mr. R. Whiteman (M-Henrico) asked how the firms were identified. Mrs. K. Hynes stated the RFP was put on 

the eVA website which is the State of Virginia electronic procurement site, CVWMA website and advertised 

in the Richmond Times Dispatch. Mrs. Hynes stated the committee also has some knowledge of the 

companies from either working with them in the past or with various other organizations including Solid 

Waste Association of North America (SWANA). A mandatory preproposal meeting was held last Wednesday, 

August 7th for the 6 potential proposers. Mrs. Hynes clarified the consultants will be on an as needed basis and 

each task that is assigned would have a proposal which will have to go before the Board. This first project is 

for the Recycling program and Mrs. Hynes noted any other projects would include estimated costs which will 

be brought before the Board to appropriate funds. There are no monies appropriated currently in the budget 

for projects Mrs. Hynes stated.  

 

Mr. J. Clary (A-Henrico) stated on the proposal we are asking them to bring before the Board an independent 

evaluation of our current system and what we can do going forward. Mr. Clary stated it is not his expectation 

that we are directing the consultant on the means and methods that they use. This will be an outsider’s 

prospective only. Mr. Clary clarified the TAC and staff will provide information but will be hiring them to 

give us an independent over view of our system and provide recommendation accordingly. He noted that most 

of the Board has been at this for a long time and the idea is that we are asking for an evaluation to see what we 

may have missed and to provide an unbiased perspective.  

 

Mrs. M. Kelley (M-Henrico) asked what the criteria is for selecting out of the 6 proposers other than a cost 

basis. Mr. Nolan noted there are 9 different criteria and Mrs. Hynes noted it would be mostly based on their 

previous experience in this area; their references from previous similar reporting from recent past; and studies 

on best practices, etc. Mrs. M. Kelley (M-Henrico) stated we are choosing the consultant first and then we 

will give them the project, noting there will not be any competition for price to which Hynes responded 

affirmatively.  

 

Mr. J. Clary (A-Henrico) stated in future, we could possibly ask them to do external audits on our vendors to 

make sure environmental issues are in check. Mr. Clary noted that Mr. J. Howard (A-Chesterfield) has done a 

great job of checking on our vendors to make sure they are compliant, but the TAC does not have the time to 



12 

 

do their own checking. Mr. Clary noted the prior eWaste fiasco could have been avoided if we had audited the 

downstream efforts. Mrs. Hynes noted again the projects and cost estimates would have to be appropriated by 

the Board. Mrs. Kelley stated again that it would be without competition. Mr. Nolan stated, and Mrs. Hynes 

confirmed they would provide an hourly rate for these types of services. Mr. Clary asked if we will have 

numbers today and Mr. Nolan stated affirmatively at 2:00 p.m. Mrs. Hynes stated we will ask them to bring 

hourly rates to the interviews. Mr. Clary stated we are looking for quality and previous experience. Mrs. 

Hynes stated she thinks that what we will get back on this first project in crafting a scope will lend some 

credibility in going forward on best practices. Mrs. Hynes stated she thinks they will be able to give us good 

information on what is happening around the country and what is being put into new contracts for recycling.   

 

Item No. 12: Public Information  

 

Mrs. N. Drumheller, Public Affairs Manager, stated staff and the Young Scientists responded to 43 requests 

for the month of July, of which 27 were for presentations; 5 for educational materials; 10 for local events and 

1 media event. The Young Scientists have been to 26 summer camps in Chesterfield, Henrico, Hopewell, 

Petersburg, and Richmond. They included a STEM activity using shredded paper and wildflower seeds to 

make seed balls to attract pollinators. This hands-on activity was very popular and a great way to educate that 

we do not accept shredded paper and how it can be reused. Staff has been to six of our member localities with 

education tables to promote the importance of reduce, reuse, and recycle and how to avoid “wish cycling  

 

Staff estimates impacting over 1,300 people and oversaw the distribution of 2,800 educational materials in the 

month of July. In addition, staff added the July 4th Holiday and delays to the collections messaging ongoing 

in the phone queue, website, social media and the August 2019 Waste Reduction News newsletter.  

 

Staff presented at the Henrico Educator Workshop and participated as a community partner vendor at the 

Hanover County Public Schools #HCPSinspire conference. Staff received 19 requests from Hanover schools 

for classroom presentations from attending this event. Mrs. Drumheller thanked Mr. S. Wyatt (M-Hanover) 

for his outreach efforts at Hanover Public Schools.  

 

Volunteers are needed for the James River Advisory Council’s 20th annual James River Regional Cleanup, 

Saturday, September 14th from 9 a.m. - 1 p.m. Mrs. Drumheller noted that many of our member localities are 

hosting cleanups.  

 

CVWMA Website, Social Media and Collection Day Email Reminder  

Mrs. Drumheller stated social media is ongoing and is as important and impactful as programs and events. 

CVWMA has over 1,742 Pinterest viewers this month. Statistical data for the month of July shows that 16,243 

unique visitors made 31,875 visits to over 63,000 pages. The average visit time was 3 minutes for all pages.   

 

Staff continues to post and tweet about “wish recycling” contamination, outreach events, locality events and 

collection day updates.  

 

CVWMA July Waste Reduction News 

Mrs. Drumheller stated the monthly electronic newsletter was sent out and articles of interest were Avoid 

“Wish-cycling”; Reduce, Reuse, and Recycle; James River Regional Cleanup; and Journey to the MRF. The 

newsletter was distributed to 1,800 email subscribers.  

 

Item No. 13: Financial Reports for July 2019 

 

Mrs. K. Shea, CVWMA Accounting and Financial Manager, reported July is the first month of the new fiscal 

year and financial activity is consistent. The Authority has a combined Net Income of $532,147. The annual 



13 

 

operating assessments are billed annually at the beginning of the year and she reminded the Board net income 

will decrease monthly as the operating expenses are incurred. The accounts receivable schedule reflects the 

details of the amounts due to the Authority as of the end of the month and all accounts are current. 

 

 

 

2019 Annual Audit 

Ms. Shea reported the CVWMA audit firm Brown & Edwards conducted their field work the week of July 

30th. Staff is completing the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and will be discussing the 

results of the audit and the draft CAFR with the Audit Committee in early September. The CAFR is to be 

presented at the September Board of Directors meeting for consideration and approval. 

 

Chairman Phillips opened the floor for a motion to accept and file the Financial Reports for July 2019 as 

submitted. A motion was made by Mr. R. Whiteman (M-Henrico), seconded by Mr. A. Lane (M-Henrico) and 

carried that the Financial Reports for July 2019 be approved and filed as submitted. 

 

Item No. 14: Administrative  

 

Mrs. Hynes stated staff and Board members met with the DEQ on June 28th as part of their survey on the 

future of recycling. DEQ will submit their report to the General Assembly by November 1st. In July, Board 

members and staff participated in the DEQ seminar about how to better handle and recycle construction and 

demolition materials.   

 

Mrs. Hynes reminded the Board that the TAC Meeting will be held on Thursday, September 5th at 9:00 a.m. in 

the CVWMA offices and the Executive Committee meeting will meet on Tuesday, September 10th at 10:00 

a.m. instead of the normal 2:00 p.m. time.  

 

The CAFR report will be presented at the September 2019 Board meeting. The recommended consultant 

award and an appropriation for the first project will also be presented at the September 20th Board meeting.  

 

Old/New Business  

 

Chairman Phillips asked if there was any old or new business to come before the Board. With no further 

business to come before the Board, Chairman Phillips opened the floor for a motion to adjourn the CVWMA 

Board of Directors meeting at 10:29 a.m. The motion was made by Mr. A. Lane (M- Henrico), seconded by 

Mr. R. Whiteman (M-Henrico) and carried that the August 16, 2019 Board of Directors’ meeting be 

adjourned. 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATE  

 

I, Marcia Phillips, Chairman of the CVWMA, certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of 

the minutes of the August 16, 2019, regular meeting of the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

(CVWMA) Board of Directors. These minutes were adopted at a CVWMA Board meeting held at 9:00 a.m., 

September 20, 2019. Given under my hand and seal of the CVWMA this 20th day of September 2019. 

       

                                                                          _______________________________________ 

                                                                        Marcia Phillips, Chairman 



14 

 

 

                                                                                                                      CHAIRMANS AGENDA 

                                                                                                                                           ITEM NO. 4 

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 

 

The CVWMA Audit Committee met on Wednesday, September 11, 2019 with the CVWMA staff and a 

representative of Brown Edwards, CVWMA’s audit firm to discuss the results of the annual audit.   

 

A draft copy of the CAFR was reviewed with the committee and staff will be presenting the CAFR and 

auditor’s comments to the Board at the meeting on September 20, 2019 for approval before submitting to 

the Virginia Auditor of Public Accounts by the September 30 deadline.   The Board will receive a draft 

CAFR electronically before the Board meeting next week.   

 

Audit Committee Members: 

Mr. Mike Purvis (M-Prince George), Treasurer 

Mr. Mark Kukoski (M-Richmond), Past-Treasurer 

Mr. Robert Dunn (M-Chesterfield), Director 

Mr. Clay Bowles (A-Chesterfield) 

 

       Recommended Action:           Approval of the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 

 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

ITEM NO. 7 

 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 20-02: TO AWARD CONTRACTS FOR RECYCLING 

AND SOLID WASTE CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 

The CVWMA issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) seeking a qualified firm(s) to provide Recycling and 

Solid Waste Consultant Services on July 31, 2019. The goals and objectives of the solicitation include: 1) 

review of existing solid waste management plan and current recycling and solid waste programs, to include 

programs coordinated by the CVWMA, by localities and the private sector; 2) identify gaps and 

opportunities in recycling, while balancing economic challenges. 3) craft scope of services for residential 

recycling collection and/or processing for the region, balancing individual needs of the various localities 4) 

define holistic recycling/diversion programs, to include source reduction, reuse and best practices for 

recycling and 5) minimize environmental impacts by selecting the most sustainable business model for 

recycling with consideration on the financial impact to local governments and residents and businesses.   

 

Also included in the RFP for response by offerors was the first project for the successful firm to complete – 

Recommend Scope of Services for Curbside Recycling. The selected Consultant shall be responsible for 

researching, collecting and analyzing any all relevant information needed to fully understand the 

organization and recycling/solid waste practices in the region and in the individual member localities in 

order to recommend a scope of services for procurement of residential recycling collection and processing 

services. 
 

A mandatory pre-proposal conference was held on August 7 and four proposals were received by the 

deadline of August 16. All four offerors were interviewed by the evaluation committee consisting of Kim 

Hynes, Rich Nolan, Jon Clary (A-Henrico), Jeff Howard (A-Chesterfield), Steve Chidsey (M-Hanover) and 

Torrence Robinson (City of Richmond). The evaluation committee and staff recommend awarding 

contracts to Gershman Brickner & Bratton, Inc. (GBB) and SCS Engineers and also recommends GBB to 

conduct the first project – Recommend Scope of Services for Curbside Recycling Program. The resulting 

contracts will be for a one-year period with four one year renewal options.   

 

Attached is Resolution 20-02 authorizing the Executive Director to execute Contracts for Recycling and 

Solid Waste Consultant Services with GBB and SCS.   

 

Recommended Action:  Approval of Resolution: 20-02 

 

Attachment



16 

 

RESOLUTION 20-02 
  

A resolution awarding contracts for Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Services between the 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and Gershman, Brickner and Bratton, Inc (GBB) and 

SCS Engineers for a one (1) year period commencing on or about September 20, 2019. 

 

THE CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY RESOLVES: 

                 

WHEREAS, the report included as Staff Agenda Item No. 7 of the September 2019 Board Agenda 

outlined the proposed Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Services to be provided by GBB and 

SCS Engineers; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and 

approval, to execute a contract for Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Services between the 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and GBB; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and 

approval, to execute a contract for Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Services between the 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and SCS Engineers; and  

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage. 

 

 

Adopted this 20th day of September 2019 

 

 

ATTEST:        ______________________________  

Marcia Phillips, Chairman 



17 

 

STAFF AGENDA 

   ITEM NO. 8 

 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 20-03: APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR RECYCLING 

AND SOLID WASTE CONSULTANT SERVICES PROJECT 

 

If the contracts outlined in Agenda Item No. 7 herein are awarded by the Board, CVWMA desires to enter 

into an agreement pursuant to the Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Contract with GBB to provide a 

recommendation(s) for a scope of services for the CVWMA residential recycling program. The expected 

work to be performed would include researching, collecting and analyzing any and all relevant 

information needed to fully understand CVWMA and recycling/solid waste practices in the region and in 

the localities that participate in Residential Recycling Collection Services in order to recommend a scope 

of services for procurement of residential recycling collection and processing services. The project would 

begin immediately and will be completed by December 31, 2019 with preliminary recommendations by 

December 1. The total cost for this project shall not exceed $43,000. 

 

Resolution 20-03 attached will authorize the Executive Director to execute an agreement with GBB, 

pursuant to the Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Contract for the recommendation of a scope(s) of 

services for the residential recycling program and appropriate $43,000 from Net Position (Reserves) in the 

Residential Recycling Services Fund to complete the project.   

 

Recommended Action:  Approval of Resolution: 20-03 

 

Attachment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



18 

 

 

RESOLUTION 20-03 

 
 A resolution authorizing an agreement, pursuant to the Contract for Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant 

Services between Central Virginia Waste Management Authority (CVWMA) and GBB, Inc. and to amend the 

CVWMA Operating Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending on June 30, 2020, so as to 

appropriate funds for GBB to implement the agreement.    

 

THE CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY RESOLVES: 

 

WHEREAS, the report included as Staff Agenda Item No. 8 of the September 2019 Board Agenda outlined 

the scope of work to be provided by GBB pursuant to the Contract for Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant 

Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized, subject to General Counsel’s review and approval, to 

execute an agreement pursuant to the Contract for Recycling and Solid Waste Consultant Services between 

the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority and GBB; and  

 

THAT, the budget designated as the CVWMA Residential Recycling Project Fund for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2020 is hereby amended as follows:  

                                 

                    2019 - 2020                                  2019 - 2020 

          Account                                                 Approved Budget        Amendment        Revised Budget 
RESIDENTIAL RECYCLING PROJECT FUND 

Special Project Support                                               $ 0                           $43,000                     $43,000 

 

Net Appropriation  

          Residential Recycling Project Fund                                               $43,000 

 

                                                 

AND THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage. 

Adopted this 20th day of September 2019 

 

 

ATTEST:        ______________________________  

Marcia Phillips, Chairman 



19 

 

 

             STAFF AGENDA 

                                                                                                                                            ITEM NO. 12 

 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR AUGUST 2019 

 

The financial activity for August are consistent with previous months and the Authority continues to 

remain within total budget in all funds as of August 31, 2019. CVWMA has a combined Net Income 

of $486,713year to date. The net income will decrease as we continue to incur expenses throughout the 

fiscal year. 

 

The Accounts Receivable schedule is included and reflects the amounts due to the Authority. There 

are two accounts not current, totaling $44,451 and staff is working with the jurisdictions to bring them 

up to date.  

 

 

   

 Recommended Action: Approval of the Financial Reports for August 2019 



20 

 

    Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Summary 

July - August 2019 

 

Summary - All Funds

Total Total  

Revenues Expenses NI Totals

General Operating Fund 571,366$           102,785          468,581$            

Curbside Project Fund 1,553,169          1,532,871        20,298$              

Drop-Off Project Fund 100,991            101,571          (580)$                 

Municipal Solid Waste Fund 526,310            527,897          (1,587)$               

CFC/HCFC 6,130                6,130              -$                      

Special Waste Collections 45,355              45,355            -$                      

Waste Tire Fund -                      -                    -$                      

Appliance and Scrap Metal Hauling 116,739            116,739          -$                      

Yard Waste Projects 125,955            125,955          -$                      

Waste Transfer & Disposal 240,548            240,547          1                        

    

Totals 3,286,565$      2,799,852$   486,713$          

 

Month to date Year to date Budget

Capital Outlay 5,539$             5,539$          15,000$            

 
 

 



21 

 

 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

July - August 2019 

 

 

General Operating Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

     

Revenues:  

Annual Gov't Assessments (0)$                 567,956$        567,955$      (1)$                0.0%

Interest on Investments 2,296              3,410              34,500          31,090           90.1%

    

Total Revenues 2,296              571,366          602,455        31,089           5.2%

   

Expenses:

Personnel services 36,131            73,726            417,860        344,134         82.4%

Fringe benefits 7,939              12,756            86,225          73,470           85.2%

Professional services 9,087              9,927              34,400          24,473           71.1%

Repairs and maintenance 819                965                3,125           2,160             69.1%

Advertising and promotions -                    -                    1,250           1,250             100.0%

Materials and supplies 49                  49                  4,450           4,401             98.9%

Other services and charges 1,564              2,039              15,070          13,031           86.5%

Leases (2,389)            1,493              46,400          44,907           96.8%

Depreciation 859                1,831              10,750          8,919             83.0%

Contingencies -                    -                    -                  -                   

     

Total Expenses 54,058            102,785          619,530        516,745         83.4%

   

Net Income (51,762)$       468,581$      (17,075)$     485,656$      

 

 

Capital Outlay 3,208$            3,208$            7,650$          4,442$           
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

July - August 2019 

 

 

Curbside Project Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

   

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 720,368$        1,433,928$      8,720,000$    7,286,072$     83.6%

Public Relations Assessment 18,275            37,890            226,000        188,110         83.2%

Customer Service Assessment 18,916            43,985            240,000        196,015         81.7%

96-gal Cart Revenue 18,599            35,797            164,000        128,203         78.2%

Sponsorship and Grants -                    -                    10,000          10,000           0.0%

Material Sales Rebate -                    -                    -                   

Interest on Investments 792                1,569              20,865          19,296           92.5%

     

Total Revenues 776,950          1,553,169        9,380,865     7,827,696       83.4%

   

Expenses:  

Personnel services 17,488            38,106            225,230        187,124         83.1%

Fringe benefits 7,009              12,214            55,975          43,761           78.2%

Professional services 6,826              8,045              29,975          21,930           73.2%

Repairs and maintenance 556                1,725              2,800           1,075             38.4%

Advertising and promotions 464                529                81,750          81,221           99.4%

Materials and supplies 117                117                3,910           3,793             97.0%

Other services and charges 1,804              3,490              64,525          61,035           94.6%

Leases (2,344)            667                35,500          34,834           98.1%

Depreciation 564                1,633              7,200           5,567             77.3%

Contractual services 720,368          1,433,928        8,720,000     7,286,072       83.6%

96-gal Cart Expense 16,004            32,418            154,000        121,582         78.9%

Material Sales Rebate -                    -                    -                  -                   -               

    

Total Expenses 768,856          1,532,871        9,380,865     7,847,994       83.7%

  

Net Income 8,094$          20,298$        -$                20,298$        

 

Capital Outlay 2,732$            2,732$            6,600$          3,868$           
 

 

 

 

 



23 

 

 

 

 

     Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

July - August 2019 

 

 

Drop Off Project Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

    

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 91,386$          91,386$          1,000,000$    908,614$        90.9%

Materials Sales Rebate 6,672              9,606              150,000        140,394         93.6%

Interest on Investments -                    -                    8,130           8,130             100.0%

     

Total Revenues 98,057            100,991          1,158,130     1,057,139       91.3%

   

Expenses:

Personnel services 498                1,029              10,345          9,316             90.1%

Fringe benefits 288                503                2,390           1,887             79.0%

Professional services 507                511                1,680           1,169             69.6%

Repairs and maintenance 49                  78                  200              122               60.8%

Advertising and promotions -                    -                    1,500           1,500             100.0%

Materials and supplies -                    -                    190              190               100.0%

Other services and charges 33                  88                  455              367               80.7%

Leases (81)                 23                  1,295           1,272             98.2%

Contractual services 91,386            91,386            1,000,000     908,614         90.9%

Materials sales rebate 5,143              7,955              123,000        115,045         93.5%

    

Total Expenses 97,821            101,571          1,141,055     1,039,484       91.1%

  

Net Income 236$             (580)$            17,075$      (17,655)$       
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

 

 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

July - August 2019 

 
 

Municipal Solid Waste Fund

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

   

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 520,238$        520,238$        3,370,000$    2,849,762$     84.6%

Customer Service Assessment 5,649              5,649              34,000          28,351           83.4%

Contract Admin Costs -                    -                    -                  -                   0.0%

Interest on Investments 423                423                5,505           5,082             92.3%

     

Total Revenues 526,310          526,310          3,409,505     2,883,195       84.6%

   

Expenses:

Personnel services 3,344              3,344              19,080          15,736           82.5%

Fringe benefits 1,130              1,130              5,080           3,950             77.8%

Professional services 2,361              2,361              7,350           4,989             67.9%

Repairs and maintenance 330                330                875              545               62.3%

Advertising and promotions -                    -                    500              500               99.0%

Materials and supplies -                    -                    950              950               100.0%

Other services and charges 258                258                1,790           1,532             85.6%

Leases 61                  61                  3,180           3,119             98.1%

Depreciation 185                185                700              515               73.6%

Contractual Services 520,228          520,228          3,370,000     2,849,772       84.6%

      

Total Expenses 527,897          527,897          3,409,505     2,881,608       84.5%

  

Net Income (1,587)$         (1,587)$         -$                (1,587)$        

Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  750$            750$              
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



25 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenses – Budget and Actual 

July - August 2019 

 

 

Other Special Projects

Month to Date Year to Date Total % Budget

Actual Actual Budget Variance Remaining

Revenues:  

Project Service Fees 401,314$        401,314$        2,597,000$    2,195,686$     84.5%

Contract Admin Costs -                    -                  -                   0.0%

Materials Sales Rebate 133,414          133,414          540,000        406,586         75.3%

 

Total Revenues 534,728          534,728          3,137,000     2,602,272       83.0%

  

Expenses:  

Advertising and Promotions -                    -                    -                  -                   0.0%

Contractual services 401,313          401,313          2,597,000     2,195,687       90.0%

Materials sales rebate 133,414          133,414          540,000        406,586         75.3%

      

Total Expenses 534,727          534,727          3,137,000     2,602,273       83.0%

  

Net Income 1$                 1$                 -$                1$                  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



26 

 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 

 Accounts Receivables 

August 2019 

 

 

Current

Total Over 60 days w/in 60 days

Department of General Services 2,462               -                    2,462                

Ashland 39,163             -                    39,163              

Charles City -                      -                    -                        

Chesterfield 375,800           -                    375,800            

Colonial Heights 78,801             -                    78,801              

Goochland 4,978               -                    4,978                

Hanover 40,178             -                    40,178              

Henrico 760,094           29,233          730,861            

Hopewell 238,368           -                    238,368            

New Kent 8,876               -                    8,876                

Petersburg 265,211           15,218          249,992            

Powhatan 16,957             -                    16,957              

Prince George -                      -                    -                        

Richmond 15,577             -                    15,577              

  Totals    44,451$        1,802,015$        


